
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

 
November 13, 2018 

 

CALENDAR 
 

Nov 13 5:30 p.m. Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 13 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 20 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 27 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 27 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Dec 11 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Dec 11 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 

 
C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 

D. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 
Central High School 

Memorial High School 
 

E. GIFT ACCEPTANCE - The administration recommends Board acceptance 
with appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

F. STUDENT RECOGNITION 
Elementary Lacrosse Champions - Eastwood 

 

G. MINUTES            October 23, 2018 – Public Work Session 
October 23, 2018 – Regular Board Meeting 
November 8, 2018 – Special Board Meeting 

 
H. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Recommendation and Award of 2018 EACC Annex Building Project – The 

Business Offices recommends Board approval of the bid award for the 2018 

EACC Annex Building Project. 
 

 Recommendation and Award of Elkhart High School Addition and Renovation  

Project – The Business Offices recommends Board approval of the bid award 
for the Elkhart High School Addition and Renovation Project. 

REVISED 
November 13, 2018 



BOARD AGENDA November 13, 2018 
 
 

2 
   

 Extra Curricular Purchase - The Business Office seeks Board approval of an 
extra-curricular purchase request. 

 
 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 

school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 5460 – Graduation Requirements - The administration 
presents revisions to Board Policy 5460 – Graduation Requirements, as 

initially presented at the October 23rd regular meeting. 
 

 Administrative Regulation JC – School District Boundaries – The 
administration presents revisions to Administrative Regulation JC – School 

District Boundaries, as initially reviewed at the October 23rd regular 
meeting. 
 

J. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Supplemental Payments – The administration seeks Board authorization to 
provide supplemental payments to teachers. 
 

 Tentative Agreement - Consideration of a tentative agreement with the 
Elkhart Teacher’s Association (ETA) for a new collective bargaining 
agreement. 

 
 Redevelopment Commission Appointment 

 

 2019–2020 School Calendar – The administration presents the 2019-2020 

School Calendar for initial consideration. 
 

 Grants – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of 

grants as recommended by the administration. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of 

overnight trip requests. 
 

K. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 
 

L. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

M. ADJOURNMENT 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Mark Mow, Board of School Trustees 

From: Brenda Kolbe and Tony England 

Date: October 25, 2018 

 

Gift Approval – Whole Foods 

 

 

Whole Foods has generously donated $2.042.44 to Elkhart Community Schools. This donation will 

be used to help support the Lucille Wilcox Fund and William Miller Dental Fund. These two funds 

support students in urgent need of medical and dental assistance, and are managed by our 

school nurses. This donation was raised through Whole Foods’ Community Giving Day on October 

18, when 5% of the day’s sales are donated to a local organization. Whole Foods in Mishawaka 

selected Elkhart Community Schools as the recipient of their recent Community Giving Day. 

 

We are requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that 

appropriate letters of thanks are sent to: 

 

Whole Foods Market - Midwest Support Office 

Attn. Sarah Christensen, Marketing Manager 

640 N LaSalle Street #300 

Chicago, IL 60654 

 

Whole Foods Market - Mishawaka 

Attn. Rachel Yessa, Store Team Leader 

4230 Grape Rd 

Mishawaka, IN 46545 

 

 

Thank you, 

 

Brenda Kolbe    Tony England 

Director of Communication  Assistant Superintendent of Student Services 

Elkhart Community Schools  Elkhart Community Schools 

 





 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
DATE: 11/7/18 

TO: Mark Mow 

Board of School Trustees 

FROM: April Walker, Principal 

RE: Donation Approval 

 

 Monger Elementary is requesting permission to accept a donation from Shoes That Fit/Nolan 

Gerwels family.  The family would like to donate 75 pairs of shoes valued at $3,000-4,000 to 3rd grader 

students and the boys basketball players at Monger Elementary. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

  Lee Kane/Shoes That Fit  

c/o Nolan Gerwels Family 

   Att:  

1420 N. Claremont Blvd 

Suite 204 A 

Claremont, California  91711 

 

 

 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
October 23, 2018 

 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
5:30 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 

Present: Jeri E. Stahr Rodney J. Dale 

  Glenn L. Duncan 

  Carolyn R. Morris 

Absent: Douglas K. Weaver  

   

ECS Personnel    

Present: Cary Anderson Brenda Kolbe 

 Tony England Mark Mow 
 Shawn Hannon Frank Serge 
  Doug Thorne 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board saw a demonstration from Brenda Kolbe, Director of 
Communication, on the new information being provided on the website 
regarding progress to one high school including construction updates and 

the various schools of study.  Memorial High School Principal, Cary 
Anderson, and Central High School Principal, Frank Serge, discussed the 
preparations regarding curriculum and timelines for one high school. 

 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 5:55 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

October 23, 2018 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 
Present: Jeri E. Stahr Rodney J. Dale 

  Glenn L. Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
Absent: Douglas K. Weaver  

 

Roll Call 

President Karen Carter called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited.   
 

Call to 
Order 

Director of technology integration, Wes Molyneaux, recited the Elkhart 
Promise. 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mrs. Carter discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representative from 
Central High School (CHS) Rhea Kunder, a sophomore, introduced 
herself.  In addition to SSAC, Ms. Kunder is on the varsity swim team 

and participates in the Future Problem Solvers club.  Ms. Kunder’s report 
included the following sports and music events:  the football team plays 
Goshen on Friday; cross-country team member Lauren Dibley will 

compete at the State meet; girls’ swimming has its first meet on 
November 6th; girls basketball is gearing up for their season; the 
orchestra had a successful string-fest in October; the Blazer brigade will 

compete at the ISSMA semi-state competition; and the first choir 
concert is November 28th. 
 

SSAC 
Representatives 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): on-going gifts to 
Roosevelt STEAM Academy from Crossroads Community Church 

including: two monthly breakfasts for staff PLC; time and materials for 
play areas; dinner and dessert for the Back to School Title 1 meeting; 
ice cream for monthly parent meetings; and pumpkins for first graders 

for science investigations and fall fun. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes: 

October 9, 2018 – Regular Board Meeting  
 

Approval of 

Minutes 

  



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$6,272,471.09 as shown on the October 23, 2018, claims listing.  

(Codified File 1819-44)   
 

Payment of 
Claims 

The Board received a financial report from Kevin Scott, chief financial 

officer, for the period January 1 – September 30, 2018.  Mrs. Carter 
noted Account 800 School Lunch Fund has fallen further in arrears. 
 

Financial Report 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the 2019 Budget as presented 
by Mr. Scott at the October 9th public hearing.  (Codified File 1819-45)   
 

2019 Budget 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted the 2019 Bus Replacement Plan 
Resolution as presented by Mr. Scott at the October 9th public hearing. 
(Codified File 1819-46) 

 

2019 Bus 
Replacement 
Plan Resolution 

 
By unanimous action, the Board adopted the 2019 Capital Projects Fund 
Plan Resolution as presented by Mr. Scott at the October 9th public 

hearing. (Codified File 1819-47) 
 

2019 Capital 
Projects Fund 

Plan Resolution 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted the Tax Neutrality Resolution.  

(Codified File 1819-48) 
 

Tax Neutrality 

Resolution 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted the Resolution to Reduce 
Proposed Budget.  (Codified File 1819-49) 
 

Resolution to 
Reduce Proposed 
Budget 

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved the following extra-curricular 
purchases: 111 polo shirts for West Side’s band and orchestra concert 

uniform in the amount of $1,665; and dresses and vests for Memorial 
High School’s (MHS) choral and crimson singers in the amount of 
$2,400. 

 

Extra-Curricular 
Purchase 

Requests 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 

activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1819-50) 
 

Fundraisers 
 

Mr. Scott provided the current insurance report stating this September 
was much better than last, and year-to-date reflects reduced costs. 

Insurance 
Update 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to Board 
Policy 5830 – Student Fundraising, as initially presented at the October 
9th regular meeting. 

 

Board Policy 
5830 
 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 5460 – 
Graduation Requirements, for initial consideration.  Doug Thorne, district 

counsel/chief of staff, stated the proposed change regards physical 
education credits for those enrolled in the ROTC program. 
 

 

Board Policy 
5460 

 



3 
 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Administrative 
Regulation JC – School District Boundaries, for initial review.  Mr. Thorne 

stated there are 3 boundary ‘language’ changes, not affecting student 
enrollment. 
 

Administrative 
Regulation JC 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 
waived second reading of Board Policy 3422.08S – Paraprofessionals’ 
Compensation Plan.  Mr. Thorne noted the revision adds differential pay 

for paraprofessionals at Tipton. 
 

Board Policy 
3422.08S 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 

waived second reading of Board Policy 3422.15S – Permanent Substitute 
Teachers’ Compensation Plan. 
 

Board Policy 

3422.15S 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submission of the following 
grants for Mary Beck’s learning gardens:  Annie’s Grants for Gardens 
2018 to Annie’s Homegrown, Inc. in the amount of $2,930.40; and 

Lowe’s Toolbox for Education grant to Lowe’s for $3,730.40. (Codified 
File 1819-51) 
 

Grant 
Submission 

By unanimous action, the Board confirmed acceptance of eight (8) 
extra-curricular grants presented by Ashley Molyneaux, executive 

director of the Elkhart Education Foundation (EEF) totaling $26,555: 
CHS winter percussion ($5,000); MHS Air Force ROTC equipment 
($3,300); Woodland drumming up equipment ($2,000); Cleveland 

sports uniforms ($2,500); West Side basketball uniforms ($4,125); 
ElkLogics competition fees ($5,000); MHS choral New York trip 
($4,000); and West Side helping hands service club ($630).  (Codified 

File 1819-52) 
 
Mrs. Molyneaux spoke regarding the Kindness to Prevent Blindness 

program provided by the EEF.  The mobile exam unit was available for a 
tour.  The program will screen students in first, third, and fifth grades as 
required by the Indiana Department of Education.  Boling Vision Center 

doctors donate their time to provide the screenings and two pairs of 
glasses for students needing them.  Mrs. Molyneaux stated undetected 
vision problems have been found in populations of adjudicated 

adolescents, with percentages as high as 74%. 
 

Grant 
Acceptance 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the October 23, 2018 listings. (Codified File 1819-53) 
 

Conference 

Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 
Report 

  



4 
 

Employment of the following five (5) certified staff members for 
the 2018-2019 school year:  

Itanya Coon-Kauffman - science at Pierre Moran, effective 
10/15/18 

Nina Jaebker - counselor at West Side, effective 10/22/18 

Earl Knudson - physical education at Pierre Moran, 
effective 10/30/18 

Victor Muniz - grade 2 at Eastwood, effective 10/22/18 

Suzanne Ragsdale - art at Roosevelt, effective 10/17/18 
 

Certified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of the following two (2) certified staff members 

effective on dates indicated: 
Jill Balcom – principal at Bristol, 10/24/18 
Nicole Perry – special education at Pinewood, 10/18/18 

 

Certified 

Resignation 
 

Correction to resignation date for certified staff member, Jennifer 
Beer, counselor at West Side, effective 10/18/18. 

Correction to 
Resignation 

Date 
 

Resignation of the following three (3) classified employees 

effective on the dates indicated: 
Corina Gonzales - food service at Pinewood, 10/26/18 

Kimberly Sutton - paraprofessional at Eastwood, 10/24/18 
Tanya Terry - paraprofessional at Monger, 10/30/18 
 

Classified 

Resignation 
 

Retirement of the following two (2) classified employees effective 
on the dates indicated, with years of service in parenthesis: 

Robert House, Jr. - catering driver at Commissary, 

11/30/18 (17) 
Kenneth Bennett - custodian at West Side, 10/26/18 (10) 
 

Classified 
Retirement 
 

Employment of the following thirty-nine (39) classified employees 
who have successfully completed their probationary period on 

dates indicated: 
Callie Alford - paraprofessional at Woodland, 10/10/18 
Jenna Armstrong - paraprofessional at Feeser, 10/10/18 

Margaret Beaver - language pathologist assistant at PACE, 
10/14/18 

Jalethia Black - food service at Osolo, 10/14/18 

Carrie Conway - paraprofessional at Central, 10/10/18 
Nicole Crandall - secretary at Beardsley, 10/10/18 
Kendra Crump - food service at Eastwood, 10/10/18 

Amaryllis Dunn - bus helper at Transportation, 10/10/18 
John Faigh - bus driver at Transportation, 10/14/18 
Catelynn Fuller - bus driver at Transportation, 10/22/18 

Michelle Genslinger - bus driver at Transportation, 
10/10/18 

Amanda Gulis - paraprofessional at Cleveland, 10/10/18 

Maria Ha - paraprofessional at Beck, 10/10/18 
Mariah Harney - bus driver at Transportation, 9/26/18 

Classified 
Employment 

 



5 
 

Randall Hirsh - bus helper at Transportation, 10/10/18 
Haley Kidder - bus driver at Transportation, 10/10/18 

Shirley Kelly - food service at Osolo, 10/10/18 
Karri Kinney - food service at Pinewood, 10/14/18 
Tracy Laribee - food service at Cleveland, 10/14/18 

Casey Lemerand - speech language pathologist assistant 
at Daly, 10/14/18 

Wanda Lipa - bus driver at Transportation, 10/10/18 

Cheyenne Magyar - bus helper at Transportation, 
10/10/18 

Derek McBride - support technician at Technology, 

10/21/18 
LB Hannah McDaniel - paraprofessional at Feeser, 

10/10/18 

Sesalie Nelson - paraprofessional at Daly, 10/10/18 
Patrick Nussbaum - paraprofessional at Central, 10/10/18 
Alta Radelich - bus driver at Transportation, 9/19/18 

Jane Rehl - bus driver at Transportation, 10/21/18 
Jessalyn Rink - bus helper at Transportation, 10/10/18 
Anita Ritchie - paraprofessional at Roosevelt, 10/10/18 

Rachelle Roberts - food service at Memorial, 10/17/18 
Cedtrina Smith - bus helper at Transportation, 10/10/18 

Melissa Smith - paraprofessional at PACE, 10/10/18 
Brenda Snider - bus helper at Transportation, 10/10/18 
Daphne Waits - data and assessment specialist at ECS, 

10/22/18 
Lakesha Washington - food service at North Side, 9/11/18 
Kristin Whitaker - paraprofessional at Osolo, 10/16/18 

Felicia Williams - paraprofessional at Daly, 10/14/18 
Lisa Willis - food service at Osolo, 10/10/18 
 

Leave for classified employee Jalethia Black, food service at 
Osolo, beginning 10/22/18 and ending 12/7/18. 

 

Classified 
Leave 

 

Withdrawal of the recommendation to hire for classified 
employee, Sheila Elswick, food service at Central, as reported on 

the 10/9/18 personnel report. 
 

Classified 
Revision 

 

An audience member spoke regarding the dress code at Central, 

enforcement of the dress code, and suggestion of possible uniforms to 
avoid dress code issues. 
 

From the 

Audience 

Mark Mow, interim superintendent, noted the next regular Board 
meeting is November 13th. 

From the 
Superintendent 
 

Board member, Susan Daiber, acknowledged the teachers in the 
audience who attended after their parent/teacher meetings. 

 

From the Board 

  



6 
 

Board member, Glenn Duncan, thanked those responsible for the 
ILEARN testing equipment report received in response to a request at a 

previous meeting. 
 

From the Board 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:45 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
November 8, 2018 

 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
approximately 4:00 p.m. 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Rodney J. Dale 
 Jeri E. Stahr Glenn L. Duncan 

  Carolyn R. Morris 
   

 

Roll Call 

President Karen Carter called the special meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the scoring of RFP Qualitative 
Proposals for the 2018 EACC Annex Building Project. 
 

Scoring 
Approval 

The Board opened the RFP sealed price proposal for the 2018 EACC 
Annex Building Project.  Design Criteria Developer, Jamie Lake of J. Lake 
Architecture & Design responded to various procedural questions from 

Board members. 
 

Bid Price 
Opening 
 

By unanimous action, the Board authorized the design criteria developer 

to complete an evaluation of best value analysis of the RFP Qualitative 
Proposals for the 2018 EACC Annex Building Project. 
 

Best Value 

Analysis 

By unanimous action, the Board authorized the design criteria developer 
to complete provide a recommendation of best value of the RFP 
Qualitative Proposals for the 2018 EACC Annex Building Project. 

 

Land Exchange 
Resolution 
 

The meeting adjourned at 4:30 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 



2 
 

APPROVED: 
 

  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 

 

____________________________________ 
  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

Signatures 

 





j.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGNj.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN

502.802.8797       jamie.lake@jlakearch.com      129 Quartermaster Court    Jeffersonville, IN 47130

November 9, 2018 

Tony Gianesi, Chief Operating Officer 
Elkhart Community Schools 
307 South Main Street, Suite 400 
Elkhart, IN 46514 
574-262-5563 phone 
574-320-5415 mobile 
574-262-5693 fax 
tgianesi@elkhart.k12.in.us 

RE: 2018 ELKHART AREA CAREER CENTER 
 ANNEX BUILDING PROJECT 
 ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
 Elkhart, IN 

Dear Tony, 

The responses to the Request for Proposal (RFP) were received at the JC Rice Educational Services 
Center at 1:00 PM on Thursday, November 1, 2018 for the above-referenced project, in accordance with 
the requirements of the Request for Proposals (RFP.) 
Responses from each team included both their Qualitative Proposals and sealed Price Proposals. 
The Qualitative Proposals contain the scope of work to be provided, absent of any pricing information. 
The TRC is required to score the Qualitative Proposals to review scope of work provided in the proposal. 
Once scored, the sealed Price Proposals are to be opened by the Board for the pricing within the 
budget for the stated scope of work provided within the budget given to the teams to work within. 

The Design-Build teams completed their final presentations/interviews on Thursday, November 8, 2018,  with 
the members of the Technical Review Committee (TRC), to review the scope and final proposal responses. 
Once completed, the TRC scored the Qualitative Proposals in open session.  
I have verified the accuracy of the numerical inputs of all scores from all TRC members, as well as the 
mathematical calculations of all formulas, and have found them to be accurate and free from errors.  

Following the scoring of the Qualitative Proposals, the sealed Price Proposals from each team were 
publicly opened by the Board at the Special Board Meeting and read aloud.  

Per the authorization of the Board, I have completed the determination of Best Value, calculated using 
both the scoring of the Qualitative Proposals and the Price Proposal total price amounts. The scoring 
sheets area attached and the determination of best value is included herein.  

The hard copies of the Price Proposal information received was retained by me at the time of opening for 
a continuation of review of the information, with them being mailed and returned to you for your official 
project files and records. The Price Proposal information is attached. 

Registered Architect:  Indiana #19900007 • Kentucky #5066 • NCARB #51592 
Registered Interior Designer: Indiana #00411 
Professional Affiliations: American Institute of Architects #30121121 • Construction Specifications Institute #1194282          PAGE !                   1

mailto:tgianesi@elkhart.k12.in.us
mailto:jamie.lake@jlakearch.com


j.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGNj.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN

502.802.8797       jamie.lake@jlakearch.com      129 Quartermaster Court    Jeffersonville, IN 47130

I have reviewed the Price Proposals submitted by each team and the proposal requirements of the RFP. 
To the best of my knowledge and abilities, all Price Proposals appear to be responsive, complete, and 
free from irregularities.  

The Price Proposal from Brown & Brown General Contractors is within the budget for the Base Bid scope of 
work, including Enhancement E for additional square footage. The price total given for this Enhancement is 
already included within the Base Bid price. This number was provided to show the value of this work within 
the Base Bid total. Although prices were provided for the other Enhancements, none of them can be 
provided within the $3,000,000 budget given. 

The Price Proposal from DJ Construction was within the budget for the Base Bid scope of work, including 
Enhancement E for additional square footage, the price of which is included within the Base Bid price.  
No prices were given for other Enhancements, since none of them can be provided within the $3,000,000 
budget given. 

It is my recommendation to award the Progressive Design-Build Contract for the above-referenced project 
to Brown & Brown General Contractors as the Design-Builder and Best Value proposal. 
Once executed, the successful Design-Builder begins Phase 2-Progressive Design-Build Services to work 
with the ECS team and the DCD to refine and finalize the scope of work for the project. 

Information for the floor plan, site plan, and renderings of their proposal, including the design to date, will 
be sent under separate cover to include in the Board packets as general information. 

Registered Architect:  Indiana #19900007 • Kentucky #5066 • NCARB #51592 
Registered Interior Designer: Indiana #00411 
Professional Affiliations: American Institute of Architects #30121121 • Construction Specifications Institute #1194282          PAGE !                   2

mailto:jamie.lake@jlakearch.com


j.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGNj.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN

502.802.8797       jamie.lake@jlakearch.com      129 Quartermaster Court    Jeffersonville, IN 47130

Determination of Best Value:  
The DCD will determine the Best Value proposal from the scoring completed by the TRC.  
The formula for consideration is as follows: 

1. Numerator: 
 The total price for the Base Bid plus Enhancements plus Added Value within the budget, equals, 
 The aggregate total price proposal dollar amount for the entire Project proposal. 

2. Denominator: 
 The total score for the Qualitative Proposal within the budget, equals, 
 The aggregate total qualitative score for the entire Project proposal. 

3. Calculation: 
 The aggregate total price proposal dollar amount for the entire Project proposal, divided by,  
 The aggregate total qualitative score for the entire Project proposal, equals, 
 The single numerical value for the shortlisted respondent’s proposal,  
 and is the shortlisted respondent’s Adjusted Price. 

4. The lowest Adjusted Price will be recommended by the DCD to the Owner as the Best Value  
 proposal. 

Brown & Brown General Contractors 
2,985,800 / 71.83 = 41,567.59 

DJ Construction 
3,000,000 / 51.17 = 58,628.10 

 
Sincerely, 

Jamie Lake, AIA 
President / CEO 

Enclosed: (3) Scoring of Qualitative Proposals Score Sheets  
  (3) Price Proposals-Brown & Brown General Contractors 
  (4) Price Proposals-DJ Construction 

File:  18-13-02/P3-E 

Registered Architect:  Indiana #19900007 • Kentucky #5066 • NCARB #51592 
Registered Interior Designer: Indiana #00411 
Professional Affiliations: American Institute of Architects #30121121 • Construction Specifications Institute #1194282          PAGE !                   3

j.lakej.lake

mailto:jamie.lake@jlakearch.com


1

Section Description Lake Lubbehusen Gianesi Scott Kovach Sassaman New TOTAL POSSIBLE
QP-1 Design-Builder’s Team and Project Approach 10 POINTS

A
Strength and composition of the Design-Build Team;
Experience and performance with educational facilities and projects of similar scope;
Experience, performance, understanding, and commitment to design-build best practices

4 3 4 5 3 4 3.83 0-5 Points

B Proposed schedule, phasing, timing, and work plan 4 3 4 3 3 4 3.50 0-5 Points
QP-2 Base Bid Scope of Work 60 POINTS

A Site Solution (layout, drives, access, deliveries, parking) 9 10 9 9 9 10 9.33 0-10 Points
B Exterior Design Solution (massing, materials, aesthetics, visual appeal) 9 10 10 8 10 9 9.33 0-10 Points
C Interior Design Solution (program, layout, adjacencies, materials, aesthetics, visual appeal) 8 8 10 9 9 9 8.83 0-10 Points
D HVAC System Solution (program, equipment, distribution, efficiency, maintenance, controls) 7 7 8 9 7 9 7.83 0-10 Points

E Plumbing, Electrical, and Technology Systems Solutions                                              (program, 
equipment, distribution, efficiency, maintenance, controls) 9 9 10 9 8 10 9.17 0-10 Points

F Storm Shelter Construction Area 8 10 10 9 10 8 9.17 0-10 Points
QP-3 Enhancements Scope of Work 30 POINTS

A Connector Road 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points
B CDL and Bus Driver Training Area 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points
C Additional Shop Bays 1 and 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points
D Additional Shop Bays 3 and 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points
E Additional Building Square Footage 4 5 0 5 4 5 3.83 0-5 Points
F Paving of Existing Parking Lot 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points

QP-4 Added Value 10 POINTS

A Bonus points awarded to the team for added value to the Project 8 5 10 7 5 7 7.00 0-10 Points

GRAND TOTAL 70.00 0.00 70.00 75.00 73.00 68.00 75.00 431.00
ADJUSTED AGGREGATE SCORE 71.83

BROWN & BROWN GENERAL CONTRACTORS

SCORING OF QUALITATIVE PROPOSALS                                                                                                                                                                                                 
2018 ELKHART AREA CAREER CENTER                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ANNEX BUILDING PROJECT                                                                                                                                                                                                   
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Elkhart, IN



2

Section Description Lake Lubbehusen Gianesi Scott Kovach Sassaman New TOTAL POSSIBLE
QP-1 Design-Builder’s Team and Project Approach 10 POINTS

A
Strength and composition of the Design-Build Team;
Experience and performance with educational facilities and projects of similar scope;
Experience, performance, understanding, and commitment to design-build best practices

5 5 5 3 5 5 4.67 0-5 Points

B Proposed schedule, phasing, timing, and work plan 5 5 5 5 5 5 5.00 0-5 Points
QP-2 Base Bid Scope of Work 60 POINTS

A Site Solution (layout, drives, access, deliveries, parking) 3 5 5 5 5 6 4.83 0-10 Points
B Exterior Design Solution (massing, materials, aesthetics, visual appeal) 6 5 5 4 6 5 5.17 0-10 Points
C Interior Design Solution (program, layout, adjacencies, materials, aesthetics, visual appeal) 3 5 9 8 6 6 6.17 0-10 Points
D HVAC System Solution (program, equipment, distribution, efficiency, maintenance, controls) 9 7 9 8 9 4 7.67 0-10 Points

E Plumbing, Electrical, and Technology Systems Solutions                                              (program, 
equipment, distribution, efficiency, maintenance, controls) 9 5 10 8 5 10 7.83 0-10 Points

F Storm Shelter Construction Area 10 10 9 8 10 9 9.33 0-10 Points
QP-3 Enhancements Scope of Work 30 POINTS

A Connector Road 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points
B CDL and Bus Driver Training Area 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points
C Additional Shop Bays 1 and 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points
D Additional Shop Bays 3 and 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points
E Additional Building Square Footage 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points
F Paving of Existing Parking Lot 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0-5 Points

QP-4 Added Value 10 POINTS

A Bonus points awarded to the team for added value to the Project 0 0 0 0 2 1 0.50 0-10 Points

GRAND TOTAL 50.00 0.00 47.00 57.00 49.00 53.00 51.00 307.00
ADJUSTED AGGREGATE SCORE 51.17

SCORING OF QUALITATIVE PROPOSALS                                                                                                                                                                                                 
2018 ELKHART AREA CAREER CENTER                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ANNEX BUILDING PROJECT                                                                                                                                                                                                   
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Elkhart, IN

DJ CONTRUCTION



3

TOTAL AGGREGATE

431.00 71.83

307.00 51.17

Brown & Brown

DJ

SUMMARY

SCORING OF QUALITATIVE PROPOSALS                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
2018 ELKHART AREA CAREER CENTER                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ANNEX BUILDING PROJECT                                                                                                                                                                                                   
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

Elkhart, IN























430 Baldwin Street, Suite 10
Elkhart, IN 46514
574.226.0249

PROJECT:       Elkhart High School
LOCATION:    Elkhart, IN
BID DATE:     November 2, 2018
BID TIME:     10:00am local time

BID TABULATION FORM

BIDDERS
ADD.
NO.1

ADD.
NO.2 BASE BID

ALTERNATES
ALT 1:  Work in Large 

Ensemble room A122, 
A124, A125 & A123

ALT 3:  Work for 
demolition of Pool 
Equipment Room

ALT 2:  Work in 
Student Center C103 

and Corridor C102

ALT 4:  Work for 
Administration area 
to start immediately

BID
SECURITY

FINANCIAL
STMT.

Gibson-Lewis LLC

Brown & Brown

Ziolkowski Construction Inc.

$7,509,300

$7,328,200

$7,159,000

$250,000

$298,700

$270,000

$350,000

$308,000

$253,000

$32,000

$32,700

$31,000

$10,000

$NC

$10,000

X X

X X

X X

X X

X X

X X









policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 1 of 7 

(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 
 

 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
High School Graduation 

 

In order to graduate from high school, a student shall 

 
 A. complete the number and type of credits in grades 9-12, except as 

otherwise provided in this policy, required by the Indiana State 
Board of Education,  

   
 B. be enrolled for at least seven (7) semesters in grades 9-12 and  
   
 C. demonstrate proficiency of the academic standards established by 

the Indiana State Board of Education and Elkhart Community 
Schools through satisfactory completion of any one of the following 
three (3) procedures: 

   
 1. The student achieves passing scores on applicable 

examinations required by State law and or the Indiana State 
Board as pre-requisites for graduation; 

   
 2. The student who does not achieve passing scores on required 

examinations may be eligible to graduate if the student does 
the following:   

   
 a. retakes the required examinations in each subject area 

in which the student has not achieved a passing score 
at least one (1) time every school year after the school 
year in which the student first takes the required 
examinations; 

   
 b. completes remediation opportunities provided to the 

student as outlined in Administrative Guideline 5460 
Section A(5)(2); 

   
 c. maintains a school attendance rate of at least 

ninety-five percent (95%) with excused absences not 
counting against the student’s attendance; 

   



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 2 of 7 

(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 d. maintains at least a “C-” average in the courses 
comprising the credits specifically required by the 
Indiana State Board of Education; and 

   
 e. either 
   

 1) obtain a written recommendation from a teacher 
of the student in each subject area of the  
required examinations in which the student has 
not achieved a passing score.  In order for a 
recommendation to be valid,  

   
 a) the principal must concur with the 

teacher recommendation, and 
   
 b) the recommendation must be supported 

by documentation, including the 
completion of the Evidence-Based 
Waiver – Core-40 Diploma form or the 
Evidence-Based Waiver – Alternate 
Documentation or Special Education for 
General Diploma form, indicating the 
student has attained the academic 
standards in the subject area based upon 

   
 (1) tests other than the required 

examinations; or 
   
 (2) classroom work; or 
   
 2) Complete 
   
 a) the course and credit requirements for a 

general diploma, including the career 
academic sequence; 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 3 of 7 

(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 
 
   
 b) a workforce readiness assessment; and 
   
 c) at least one (1) career exploration 

internship, cooperative education, or 
workforce credential recommended by the 
student’s school. 

   
 3. Where a student is a child with a disability (as defined in 

IC 20-35-1-2), the student’s case conference committee finds 
the following: 

   
 a.  The student’s teacher of record, in consultation with a 

teacher of the student in each subject area of the 
required examinations in which the student has not 
received a passing score, makes a written 
recommendation to the case conference committee.  In 
order for a recommendation to be valid: 

   
 1) the principal must concur with the teacher 

recommendation; and 
   
 2) the recommendation must be supported by 

documentation, including the completion of the 
Evidence-Based Waiver – Core-40 Diploma form 
or the Evidence-Based Waiver – Alternate 
Documentation or Special Education for General 
Diploma form, indicating the student has 
attained the academic standards in the subject 
area based upon 

   
 a) tests other than the required 

examinations; or 
   
 b) classroom work. 
   
 b. The student meets all of the following requirements: 
   
 1) retakes the  required examinations in each 

subject area in which the student has not 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 4 of 7 

(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

achieved a passing score as often as required by 
the student’s individualized education program; 

   
 2) completes remediation opportunities provided to 

the student to the extent required by the 
student’s individualized education program; 

   
 3) maintains a school attendance rate of at least 

ninety-five percent (95%) to the extent required 
by the student’s individualized education 
program with excused absences not counting 
against the student’s attendance; 

   
 4) maintains at least a “C-” average in the courses 

comprising the credits specifically required for 
graduation by rule of the Indiana State Board of 
Education and Elkhart Community Schools. 

   
 D. Additional Requirements for Students with Disabilities 
   
  During the student’s annual case review held when a student with a 

disability is enrolled in 8th grade, the case conference committee 
shall review and discuss with the student’s parent (and the student, 
if appropriate): 

   
 1. The types of diplomas available for students to receive in the 

State of Indiana; 
   
 2. The course requirements for each type of diploma; and 
   
 3. Employment and career options for the student and the type 

of academic, technical, and vocational preparation necessary 
to achieve the employment or career. 

   
  The student’s IEP must include the type of diploma the student will 

seek and courses which will allow the student to progress towards 
the diploma in a timely manner.  The Corporation shall not require 
students with disabilities to complete locally required credits that 
exceed State credit requirements to receive a diploma unless 
otherwise required as part of the student’s IEP. 

   
  Beginning in grade 9 and in addition to the annual case review, the 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 5 of 7 

(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

student’s teacher of record shall communicate at least once each 
grading period with the student’s parent concerning the student’s 
progress towards the selected diploma.  If the parent requests a 
meeting with the teacher of record to discuss the student’s progress, 
the teacher must meet with the parent in a timely manner.  Such a 
meeting does not constitute a case conference committee meeting, 

and a request for such a meeting does not abrogate a parent’s right 
to call for a meeting of the case conference committee at any time. 

   
 E. Otherwise, satisfy all State and local graduation requirements. 
 
Early Graduation 
 
For students fulfilling all graduation requirements as established in Section 1 of this 
policy in less than seven (7) semesters, a waiver may be requested.  An application 
specifying the circumstances which make the waiver advisable will be submitted to 
the Superintendent of Schools for his review and approval. 
 
A student qualifying for early graduation by the end of grade eleven (11) is eligible 
for a state early graduation scholarship subject to the provisions of Indiana statutes.  
Any student requesting an early graduation may obtain information regarding the 
scholarship from the guidance department. 
 
Granting Diplomas 
 
 A. Students enrolled in the Corporation shall have the opportunity to 

earn any type of State diploma approved by the Indiana State Board 
of Education. 

   
 B. Transfers from Other Districts 
   
  Any student, who completes his/her final semester of attendance 

and has earned at least six (6) credits from an Elkhart high school 
during this time, may be granted a diploma from an Elkhart high 
school. That student must also complete all requirements for 
graduation from high school established by the State of Indiana as 
described in Section 1 of this policy.  The Superintendent may waive 
the requirement that the student earn six (6) credits from an Elkhart 
high school if that student has completed all requirements for 
graduation from high school established by the State of Indiana as 
described in Section 1 of this policy.  

   



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 6 of 7 

(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 C. Transfers within Elkhart Community Schools 
   
  Elkhart high schools will grant a diploma to any student who has 

been in attendance at Elkhart high schools for seven (7) semesters 
and has completed all other State and local requirements for 
graduation as described in Section 1 of this policy. 

   
 D. Course Completion 
   
  Elkhart high schools will grant a Course Completion to a student 

who satisfies the requirements established in Section 1(A) and (B) of 
this policy, but who does not meet the academic standards 
established by the State of Indiana through satisfactory completion 
of any one (1) of the three (3) procedures established in Section 1(C) 
of this policy. 

   
 E. Certificate of Completion 
   
  Upon the recommendation of the student’s teacher of record, 

Elkhart high schools will grant a Certificate of Completion to a child 
with a disability (as defined in IC 20-35-1-2) who is not eligible to 
receive a diploma or a Course Completion, but who has completed 
the four (4) year educational program as established through the 
student’s IEP. 

   
 F. Credit for Courses Completed Before Students Enter Grade 9 
   
  Credit earned for high school equivalent courses taken before 

students enter grade 9 will be granted in a manner consistent with 
Indiana laws, the rules and regulations adopted by the Indiana State 
Board of Education, and the Elkhart Community Schools.  

   
 G. Credit for Courses Completed More Than One (1) Time 
   
 1. A student may repeat a high school course in which credit 

has been earned.  Credit for a course required for graduation 
will only be granted one (1) time, and the highest grade 
earned will be used to calculate student’s GPA. 

   
 2. The student's transcript will show the course each time it was 

completed and the grade assigned for each completion. 
   



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 5460/page 7 of 7 

(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 3. Some courses may be taken for multiple credits with all 
credits contributing to the GPA (e.g. band, choir, etc.). 

 
 H. A student who participates in the AFJROTC program may earn an 

additional PE credit after completing a successful year of AFJROTC. 
 

I.C. 20-26-5-37 
I.C. 20-32-4-1 through 10 
I.C. 20-35-4-11 
511 IAC 6-7.1-4 through 7 
 
 
July 25, 2017November 13, 2018 



Page 1 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

 BEARDSLEY 

 

North:  East on Bristol Street from Cassopolis Street to Independence Street. 

 

East:  South on Independence Street extended (both sides) to the St. Joseph River. 

 

South:  West on the St. Joseph River to the Elkhart River; south on the Elkhart River to 

Jackson Boulevard; west on Jackson Boulevard to Main Street; south on Main Street 

to Tyler Street (both sides); west on the railroad tracks to 6
th
 Street. 

 

West:  North on 6th Street to W. Franklin Street; west on W. Franklin Street to Vistula 

Street; northwest on the St. Joseph River to Bower Street; west on Bower Street 

(neither side) to N. Michigan Street; north on N. Michigan Street (neither side) to 

Mishawaka Street; east on Mishawaka Street extended to Cassopolis Street; north on 

Cassopolis Street to Bristol Street. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

BECK 

 

North:  East on the railroad tracks from Prairie Street to the Elkhart River. 

 

East:  South on the Elkhart River to E. Indiana Avenue. 

 

South:  West on E. Indiana Avenue to the railroad tracks. 

   

West:  North on the railroad tracks to Prairie Street. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

BRISTOL 

 

North:  East on the state line from County Road 19 to the Washington-York Township line. 

 

East:  South on the Washington-York Township line to the Washington-Jefferson 

Township line. 

 

South:  West on the Washington-Jefferson Township line to County Road 17. 

 

West:  North on County Road 17 to the St. Joseph River; east on the St. Joseph River to 

County Road 19 extended; north on County Road 19 (neither side) to the state line. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 4 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

CLEVELAND 

 

North:  East on the state line from the Elkhart-St. Joseph County line to .5 of a mile west of 

County Road 5 (Edwardsburg Road). 

 

East:  South (excluding all of the Michiana Trailer Park and Roberts Manor) to County 

Road 2; east on County Road 2 (both sides) to County Road 5 (Edwardsburg Road); 

southeast on County Road 5 (neither side) to County Road 4; southwest on County 

Road 4 (both sides) to County Road 101; south on County Road 101 (neither side) to 

the Toll Road; east on the Toll Road to County Road 5; southeast on County Road 5 

(neither side) to the intersection of County Roads 5 and 6; west on County Road 6 

(both sides) to John Weaver Parkway; south on a line from the intersection of 

County Road 6 and John Weaver Parkway to the intersection of County Road 10 

and Starner Avenue; west to the intersection of County Road 8 and County Road 1; 

south on County Road 1 (both sides) to County Road 108; east on County Road 108 

(both sides) to County Road 101; south on County Road 101 (neither side) to 

County Road 12; east on County Road 12 (neither side) to County Road 3; south on 

County Road 3 (neither side) to old U.S. 20; west on old U.S. 20 (neither side) to the 

entrance of Lexington Industrial Park; south to the St. Joseph River. 

 

South:  West on the St. Joseph River to the Elkhart-St. Joseph County line. 

 

West:  North on the Elkhart-St. Joseph County line from the St. Joseph River to the state 

line. 

 



Page 5 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

DALY 

 

North:  East on W. Beardsley Street from Nappanee Street to N. Michigan Street. 

 

East:  South on N. Michigan Street to Bower Street (both sides); east on Bower Street 

(both sides) to the St. Joseph River; south on the St. Joseph River to the intersection 

of W. Franklin and Vistula Street; west on W. Franklin Street to S. Shore Drive 

(neither side); west on W. Franklin Street from S. Shore Drive to Oakland Avenue; 

south on Oakland Avenue to the railroad. 

 

South:  West on the railroad to Nappanee Street. 

 

West:  North on Nappanee Street to the St. Joseph River; west, north and east to include 

Rainbow Bend Boulevard, Aspin Drive, and Gruber Lane, north on Nappanee to W. 

Beardsley Street. 

 

 

 

  

  



Page 6 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

EASTWOOD 

 

North:  East on the state line from County Road 11 to County Road 19. 

 

East:  South on County Road 19 (both sides) to the St. Joseph River. 

 

South:  West on the St. Joseph River to a point just west of the property line extended of 

23499 Greenleaf Boulevard. 

 

West:  North to .5 of a mile north of Bristol Street (on a line just west of the property line 

extended of 23499 Greenleaf Boulevard); west .25 of a mile; north to County Road 8 

extended; west to Puterbaugh Creek; north on Puterbaugh Creek to County Road 6, 

continue north to the state line (excluding the Hidden Lake Reserve); west on 

Stateline Road to County Road 11. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 7 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

 

 FEESER 

 

North:  East on the state line from .5 of a mile west of County Road 5 (Edwardsburg Road) 

to the intersection with Dolph Road. 

 

East:  South on Dolph Road (neither side) to N. Shore Drive; continue south to the 

intersection of County Road 4 and the Osolo Township Ditch; south on the Osolo 

Township Ditch to the Toll Road. 

 

South:  West on the Toll Road to a point at the interchange which is north of the intersection 

of Cumberland and Oakwood Avenues; south to the intersection of Oakwood and 

Cumberland Avenues; southwest diagonally to the intersection of Cassopolis Street 

(Indiana 19) and County Road 6; west on County Road 6 (both sides including 

Merlin Isle and Creekside) to County Road 5. 

 

West:  Northwest on County Road 5 to the Toll Road; west on the Toll Road to County 

Road 101; north on County Road 101 (both sides) to County Road 4; northeast on 

County Road 4 (neither side) to County Road 5; northwest on County Road 5 (both 

sides) to County Road 2; west on County Road 2 (neither side) to a line which 

intersects with the state line .5 of a mile west of where County Road 5 intersects the 

state line. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



Page 8 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

HAWTHORNE 

 

North:   East on the railroad from Nappanee Street to Oakland Avenue; north on Oakland 

Avenue to W. Franklin Street; east on W. Franklin Street to South Shore Drive; 

east on W. Franklin Street (both sides) to Collins Court; east on W. Franklin 

Street to S. 6
th 

Street; south on S. 6
th

 Street to the railroad tracks; west on the 

railroad tracks (north side only) to 11
th

 Street extended; east on W. Indiana 

Avenue to S. 6
th

 Street.   

 

East:  South on S. 6
th

 Street to W. Wolf Street; east on W. Wolf Street to Benham 

Avenue; south on Benham Avenue to W. Lusher Avenue; east on W. Lusher 

Avenue to Prairie Street; south on Prairie Street to Hively Avenue. 

  

South:  West on Hively Avenue to a point 225 feet east of Benham Avenue; south to 

approximately 425 feet north of Mishawaka Road; west to Benham Avenue, 

continue west .2 of a mile on a parallel to Mishawaka Road; north and east to 

Benham Avenue to include the Biblical Seminary; north on Benham Avenue to 

Hively Avenue; west on Hively Avenue to Compton Avenue extended; north on 

Compton Avenue extended to Carlton Avenue; west on Carlton Avenue to 6
th

 

Street; south on 6
th

 Street to Hively Avenue; west on Hively Avenue to Oakland 

Avenue; north on Oakland Avenue to the north property line of Oaklawn Center; 

east to the west property line of Southdale Drive; north to the south property line 

of Sunrise Drive (south); west to Oakland Avenue; south on Oakland Avenue to 

the south property line of the Armory (966 feet north of Hively Avenue); west to 

15
th

 Street extended; north on 15
th

 Street extended to Leininger Avenue; west on 

Leininger Avenue  (both sides) to 17
th

 Street; south on 17
th

 Street to an east-west 

alley extended; west on the alley extended to 18
th

 Street; north on 18
th

 Street to 

Leininger Avenue; west on Leininger Avenue (both sides) to Nappanee Street. 

 

West:   North on Nappanee Street to railroad. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 9 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

 

 MONGER 

 

North:  East on E. Indiana Avenue from S. Main Street to the Elkhart River. 

 

East:  South on the Elkhart River to Clayton Street extended; south to Bontrager Avenue. 

 

South:  West on Bontrager Avenue extended to DeCamp Avenue extended; north on 

DeCamp Avenue extended to Hively Avenue; west on Hively Avenue to Prairie 

Street. 

 

West:  North on Prairie Street to Lusher Avenue; east on Lusher Avenue to Main Street; 

northwest on S. Main Street to Indiana Avenue. 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 10 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

 

 

 OSOLO 

 

North:  East on County Road 6 (neither side) from County Road 5 to Cassopolis Street 

(Indiana 19); northeast to the intersection of Oakwood and Cumberland Avenues; 

north to the Toll Road (at the interchange); east to the Osolo Township Ditch; north 

on the Osolo Township Ditch to County Road 4, continue north to the intersection of 

N. Shore Drive and Dolph Road; continue north on Dolph Road (both sides) to the 

state line; east on the state line to County Road 11, continue east (neither side) to a 

point north of the intersection of County Road 6 and Puterbaugh Creek 

(approximately .3 of a mile east of County Road 11). 

 

East:  South (including Hidden Lake Reserve as well as Brighton, Fairgrove and Windrow 

Drive) to the intersection of County Road 6 and Puterbaugh Creek, continue south 

on Puterbaugh Creek to County Road 106. 

 

South:  West on County Road 106 (both sides) to County Road 11 (including all of 

Woodland Estates); south on County Road 11 (both sides) to Homewood Avenue 

extended.  West on Homewood Avenue extended to Berkley Avenue.  South on 

Berkley Avenue extended (both sides) to Country Club Drive extended.  West on 

Country Club Drive extended (neither side) to Johnson Street; South on Johnson 

Street to Bristol Street; west on Bristol Street to Edwardsburg Road. 

 

West:  North on Edwardsburg Road; northwest on Edwardsburg Road extended (neither 

side, not any of Zentz Drive) to the intersection of County Roads 5 and 6. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 11 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

  

 

 PINEWOOD 

 

North:  East on Country Club Drive extended (both sides) from Johnson Street to Berkley 

Avenue extended; north on Berkley Avenue extended (neither side) to Homewood 

Avenue; east on Homewood Avenue extended to County Road 11; north on County 

Road 11 (neither side) to County Road 106 (excluding all of Woodland Estates); east 

on County Road 106 (neither side) to Puterbaugh Creek; south on Puterbaugh Creek, 

continue east on County Road 8 (both sides) to County Road 13; east to .25 of a mile 

east of County Road 13; south to .5 of a mile north of Bristol Street; east to .5 of a 

mile east of County Road 13. 

 

East:  South to the St. Joseph River (on a line just west of Dawn Avenue and crossing 

Greenleaf Boulevard just west of 23499 Greenleaf Boulevard). 

 

South:  West on the St. Joseph River to Independence Street extended. 

 

West:  North on Independence Street extended (neither side) to Bristol Street; west on 

Bristol Street to Johnson Street; north on Johnson Street to Country Club Drive. 

 

 

 

 



Page 12 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

 

 RIVERVIEW 

 

North:  East on the St. Joseph River from the Elkhart River to Middleton Run Road. 

 

East:  South on Middleton Run Road to .14 of a mile north of Middlebury Street; east, 

south and west on an irregular line back to Middleton Run Road at Middlebury 

Street, (this includes lot one and part of lot two in Fair Acres Addition, and adjacent 

land totaling 8.4 acres.); south on Middleton Run Road to .12 of a mile south of 

Middlebury Street. 

 

South:  West to Hall Manor Addition; south to Bryant Street; west to Hall Avenue; south to 

.25 of a mile south of Middlebury Street; west .33 of a mile to Toledo Road, 

(excluding approximately four acres of land on either side of Rowe Street.); west on 

Toledo Road (neither side) to Outer Drive; north on Outer Drive about 200 feet; east 

200 feet and north to Middlebury Street; west on Middlebury Street to the east city 

limits (approximately in line with Clayton Street and Parker Avenue including 

Buildings 300, 500, 700, and 900 in the Woodwind community); south to Indiana 

Avenue extended; west to the Elkhart River; north and west on the Elkhart River to 

the railroad tracks; west on the railroad tracks to Prairie Street; south on Prairie 

Street (west side only) to the railroad tracks; west on the railroad tracks to Main 

Street.    

 

West:  North on Main Street to W. Jackson Boulevard; east on W. Jackson Boulevard to the 

Elkhart River; north on the Elkhart River to the St. Joseph River. 

 

 

  



Page 13 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

ROOSEVELT 

 

North:   East on the south side of railroad tracks from 11
th

 Street extended to E. Indiana 

Avenue; West on E. Indiana Avenue to Main Street. 

 

East:  South on S. Main Street to E. Lusher Avenue. 

 

South:  West on Lusher Avenue to Benham Avenue. 

 

West:  North on Benham Avenue to Wolf Avenue; west on Wolf Avenue to S. 6
th

 Street; 

north on S. 6
th

 Street to W. Indiana Avenue; west on W. Indiana Avenue to 11
th

 

Street extended. 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 14 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

 

WOODLAND 

 

North:  West East on County Road 6 (neither side) from the John Weaver Parkway to the 

intersection of County Roads 5; southeast on Edwardsburg Avenue extended (both 

sides, including all of Zentz Drive but not any of the Bristol Street apartments) to W. 

Bristol Street; east on W. Bristol Street to Cassopolis Street. 

 

East:  South on Cassopolis Street to Mishawaka Street extended.   

 

South:  West on Mishawaka Street extended to N. Michigan Street: south on N. Michigan 

Street (both sides) to W. Beardsley Street; west on W. Beardsley Street to Nappanee 

Street; south on Nappanee Street, west and south excluding Rainbow Bend 

Boulevard, Aspin Drive and Gruber Lane, to the St. Joseph River; west on the St. 

Joseph River to a point south of the entrance of the Lexington Industrial Park on old 

U.S. 20. 

 

West:  North to the entrance of the Lexington Industrial Park on old U.S. 20; east on old 

U.S. 20 (both sides) to County Road 3; north on County Road 3 (both sides) to 

County Road 12; west on County Road 12 (both sides) to County Road 101; north 

on County Road 101 (both sides) to County Road 108; west on County Road 108 

(neither side) to County Road 1; north on County Road 1 (neither side) to County 

Road 8; east to the intersection of County Road 10 and Starner Avenue; north to the 

intersection of John Weaver Parkway and County Road 6.  

 



Page 15 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

 

NORTH SIDE MIDDLE SCHOOL 

 

North:  East on the state line from Cassopolis Street to a point on State Line Road due north 

of the intersection of Lake Shore Drive and County Road 4. 

 

East:  South from a point on State Line Road due north of the intersection of Lake Shore 

Drive and County Road 4 to said intersection: south and east on Lake Shore Drive 

(both neither sides) to a point due north of the intersection of County Roads 15 and 

104; south from that point to the intersection of County Roads 15 and 104; south on 

County Road 15 to Bristol Street (County Road 10); east on Bristol St to a point 135 

feet east of the intersection of Meadowbank Drive and Bristol Street (County Road 

10); south from that point to the St. Joseph River;  west on the St. Joseph River to 

Main Street;  south on Main Street to Prairie Street; south on Prairie Street to Indiana 

Avenue. 

 

South:  West on Indiana Avenue to Oakland Avenue. 

 

West:  North on Oakland Avenue (neither side) to Franklin Street; east on Franklin Street to 

the junction of Franklin Street and S. Shore Drive; north to the St. Joseph River; east 

and north on the St. Joseph River to the Sherman Street Bridge; west on Bower 

Street (neither side) to Michigan Street; north on Michigan Street (neither side) to 

Edwardsburg Avenue; northwest on Edwardsburg Avenue extended (neither side - 

not any of Zentz Drive, but including the Bristol Street Apartments) to the 

intersection of County Roads 5 and 6; east on County Road 6 (neither side - not any 

of Merlin Isle or Creekside) to Cassopolis Street; north on Cassopolis Street to the 

state line. 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 16 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

PIERRE MORAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 

 

North:  East on the state line from a point due north of the intersection of Lake Shore Drive 

and County Road 4 to the Washington-York Township line. 

 

East:  South on the Washington-York Township line to the Washington-Jefferson 

township line. 

 

South: West on the Washington-York Township line to the Washington-Concord Township 

line; north on the Washington-Concord Township line (County Road 17) to the St. 

Joseph River; west on the St. Joseph River to Middleton Run Road extended; south 

on Middleton Run Road to .14 of a mile north of Middlebury Street; east, south, and 

west on an irregular line back to Middleton Run Road at Middlebury Street (this 

includes lot one and part of lot two in Fair Acres Addition and adjacent land totaling 

8.4 acres.); south on Middleton Run Road to .12 of a mile south of Middlebury 

Street; west to Hall Manor addition; south to Bryant Street; west to Hall Avenue; 

south to .25 of a mile south of Middlebury Street; west .33 of a mile to Toledo Road 

(excluding approximately four acres of land on either side of Rowe Street); west on 

Toledo Road (neither side) to Outer Drive; north on Outer Drive about 200 feet; east 

200 feet and north to Middlebury Street; west on Middlebury Street to the east city 

limits (approximately in line with Clayton Street and Parker Avenue, including 

Buildings 300, 500, 700, and 900 in the Woodwind community); south to Indiana 

Avenue extended; west on Indiana Avenue extended to the Elkhart River; south on 

the Elkhart River to Clayton Avenue extended; south on Clayton Avenue to 

Bontrager Avenue; west on Bontrager Avenue extended to DeCamp Avenue 

extended; north on DeCamp Avenue extended to Hively Avenue; west on Hively 

Avenue to a point 225 feet east of Benham Avenue; south to approximately 425 feet 

north of Mishawaka Road; west to Benham Avenue, continue west .2 of a mile on a 

parallel to Mishawaka Road; north and east to Benham Avenue to include the 

Biblical Seminary; north on Benham Avenue to Hively Avenue; west on Hively 

Avenue to Compton Avenue extended; north on Compton Avenue extended to 

Carlton Avenue; west on Carlton Avenue to 6
th
 Street. 

 

West:  North on 6
th

 Street to Indiana Avenue; east on Indiana Avenue to Prairie Street; 

north on Prairie Street to Main Street; north on Main Street to the St. Joseph River; 

east on the St. Joseph River to a point on the river which is due south of a point 135 

feet east of the intersection of Meadowbank Drive and Bristol Street (County Road 

10); west on Bristol Street (County Road 10) to County Road 15; north on County 

Road 15 (extended) to Lake Shore Drive; west and north on Lake Shore Drive (both 

sides) to County Road 4; north from the intersection of Lake Shore Drive and 

County Road 4 to the Indiana State Line. 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 17 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

  

 WEST SIDE MIDDLE SCHOOL 

 

North:  East on the state line from the intersection of the Elkhart-St. Joseph County and the 

state line to Cassopolis Street. 

 

East:  South to the intersection of Cassopolis Street and County Road 6; west on County 

Road 6 (both sides - including Merlin Isle and Creekside) to County Road 5; 

southeast on Edwardsburg Avenue extended (both sides - including all of Zentz 

Drive but not any of the Bristol Street apartments) to Michigan Street; south on 

Michigan Street (both sides) to Bower Street; east on Bower Street (both sides) to 

the St. Joseph River; south and west on the St. Joseph River and across the river to 

the junction of South Shore Drive and Franklin Street; west on Franklin Street to 

Oakland Avenue; south on Oakland Avenue (both sides) to Indiana Avenue; east on 

Indiana Avenue to 6
th
 Street; south on 6

th
 Street to Hively Avenue. 

 

South:  West on Hively Avenue to Oakland Avenue; north on Oakland Avenue to the north 

property line of Oaklawn Center; east to the west property line of Southdale Drive; 

north to the south property line of Sunrise Drive south; west to Oakland Avenue; 

south on Oakland Avenue to the south property line of the Armory (966 feet north of 

Hively Avenue); west to 15
th
 Street extended; north on 15

th
 Street extended to 

Leininger Avenue; west on Leininger Avenue (both sides) to 17
th
 Street; south on 

17
th
 Street to an east-west alley extended; west on the alley extended to 18

th
 Street; 

north on 18
th
  Street to Leininger Avenue, west on Leininger Avenue (both sides) to 

Nappanee Street; north on Nappanee Street to St. Joseph River; west on the St. 

Joseph River to the Elkhart-St. Joseph County Line. 

 

West:  North on the Elkhart-St. Joseph County line to the state line. 

 

 

  

  

February 13, 2018October 23, 2018



Page 18 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL 

 

North:  East on the state line from a point north of the intersection of County Road 6 and 

Puterbaugh Creek (about .3 of a mile east of County Road 11) to the 

Washington-York Township line. 

 

East:  South on the Washington-York Township line from the state line to the 

Washington-Jefferson Township line. 

 

South: West on the Washington-Jefferson Township line to the Washington-Concord 

Township line; north on the Washington-Concord Township line to the St. Joseph 

River; west on the St. Joseph River to Middleton Run Road; south on Middleton 

Run Road to .14 of a mile north of Middlebury Street; east, south, and west on an 

irregular line back to Middleton Run Road at Middlebury Street (this includes lot 

one and part of lot two in Fair Acres Addition and adjacent land totaling 8.4 acres); 

south on Middleton Run Road to .12 of a mile south of Middlebury Street; west to 

Hall Manor Addition; south to Bryant Street, west to Hall Avenue; south to .25 of a 

mile south of Middlebury Street; west .33 of a mile to Toledo Road (excluding 

approximately four acres of land on either side of Rowe Street), west on Toledo 

Road to Outer Drive, north on Outer Drive about 200 feet; east 200 feet and north to 

Middlebury Street; west on Middlebury Street to the east city limits (approximately 

in line with Clayton Street and Parker Avenue including Buildings 300, 500, 700, 

and 900 of the Woodwind community); south on the east city limits to Indiana 

Avenue extended; west on Indiana Avenue extended to the Elkhart River; south on 

the Elkhart River to Clayton Street extended; south to Bontrager Avenue; west on 

Bontrager Avenue to DeCamp Avenue extended; north on DeCamp Avenue 

extended to Hively Avenue; west on Hively Avenue to a point 225 feet east of 

Benham Avenue; south to approximately 425 feet north of Mishawaka Road; west 

to Benham Avenue, continue west .2 of a mile on a parallel to Mishawaka Road;  

north and east to Benham Avenue to include the Biblical Seminary; north on 

Benham Avenue to Hively Avenue; west on Hively Avenue to Compton Avenue 

extended north on Compton Avenue extended to Carlton Avenue; west on Carlton 

Avenue to 6
th
 Street. 

 

West:  North on 6
th

 Street to Marion Street; west on Marion Street to 700 W. Marion Street; 

north to Franklin Street; west on Franklin Street to 8
th
 Street; north on 8

th
 Street 

extended to the St. Joseph River; north and east on the St. Joseph River to 

Cassopolis.  Street extended; north on Cassopolis Street extended to Country Club 

Drive; east on Country Club Drive (both sides) and Medford Street extended (both 

sides) to Independence Street; north on Independence Street extended to the Osolo 

Township Ditch; northeast on the Osolo Township Ditch to County Road 8 extended 

to the west from Puterbaugh Creek; east to the intersection of County Road 8 and 

Puterbaugh Creek (including all of the Highland Mobile Home Park), north on 

Puterbaugh Creek to County Road 6, continue north to the state line (approximately 

.3 of a mile east of County Road 11). 

 



Page 19 JC 

School District Boundaries Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/23/18 BST meeting) 

 

  

 MEMORIAL HIGH SCHOOL 

 

North: East on the state line from the Elkhart-St. Joseph County line to a point north of the 

intersection of County Road 6 and Puterbaugh Creek (approximately .3 of a mile 

east of County Road 11). 

 

East:  South to County Road 6, continue south on Puterbaugh Creek to County Road 8; 

west to the Osolo Township Ditch (not any of the Highland Mobile Home Park); 

southwest on the Osolo Township Ditch to Independence Street extended, south on 

Independence Street extended to Medford Street; west on Medford Street extended 

(neither side) and Country Club Drive (neither side) to Cassopolis Street; south on 

Cassopolis Street extended to the St. Joseph River; west and south on the St. Joseph 

River to 8
th

 Street extended; south on 8
th
 Street extended to Franklin Street;  east on 

Franklin Street to 700 W. Franklin Street; south to Marion Street; east on Marion 

Street to 6
th
 Street, south on 6

th
 Street to Hively Avenue. 

 

South: West on Hively Avenue to Oakland Avenue; north on Oakland Avenue to the north 

property line of Oaklawn Center; east on the west property line of Southdale Drive; 

north to the south property line of Sunrise Drive (south); west to Oakland Avenue; 

south on Oakland Avenue to the south property line of the Armory (966 feet north of 

Hively Avenue); west to 15
th
 Street extended; north on 15

th
 Street extended to 

Leininger Avenue; west on Leininger Avenue to 17
th
  Street; south on 17

th
 Street to 

an east-west alley extended; west on the alley extended to 18
th
 Street; north on 18

th
 

Street to Leininger Avenue; west on Leininger Avenue to Nappanee Street; north on 

Nappanee Street to the St. Joseph River; west on the St. Joseph River to the 

Elkhart-St. Joseph County line. 

 

West:  North on the Elkhart-St. Joseph County line from the St. Joseph River to the state 

line. 

 

 

 

  

 February 13, 2018November 13, 2018 













JULY 2019  JANUARY 2020 

S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6     1 2 3 4 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13   5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20   12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27   19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

28 29 30       26 27 28 29 30 31  

                

AUGUST 2019   FEBRUARY 2020 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

    1 2 3         1 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10   2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17   9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24   16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31   23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

                

SEPTEMBER 2019   MARCH 2020 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7   1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14   8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21   15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28   22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30        29 30 31     

                

OCTOBER 2019   APRIL 2020 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

  1 2 3 4 5      1 2 3 4 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12   5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19   12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26   19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

27 28 29 30 31     26 27 28 29 30   

                

NOVEMBER 2019   MAY 2020 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

     1 2        1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9   3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16   10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23   17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30   24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

         31       

                

DECEMBER 2019   JUNE 2020 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7   1 2 3 4 5 6 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14  7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21  14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

22 23 24 25 26 27 29  21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

29 30 31      28 29 30     

       DRAFT 11/2/18 

 

 
 
 
 

SCHOOL CALENDAR:  JULY 2019 – JUNE 2020 
 
August  
13 Full day pre-session for teachers – non-student day 
14 Full day pre-session for teachers – non-student day 
15 Students’ first day – Full day for all students 
 
September 
2 Labor Day – All Schools Closed 
  
October 
11 End of 1st grading period/midterm – all schools 
21 & 23        Elementary Parent/Teacher Conferences in the evening hours – (full 
                    day for all school students) 
22 & 23 Secondary Parent/Teacher Conferences in the evening hours – (full 
                    day for all school students) 
24-25 Fall Recess – All Schools Closed 
28                Fall Recess – All Schools Closed 
 
November 
27-29 Thanksgiving Recess – All Schools Closed 
 
December 
20 End of 2nd grading period/1st semester – all schools 
23-Jan 3 Winter Recess – All Schools Closed 
 
January 
6 School resumes after Winter Recess 
20 Martin Luther King Jr. Day – All Schools Closed 
 
February 
6 Parent/Teacher Conferences for elementary only and Professional 
 Development day for secondary teachers – (no school for all students) 
14 No School – Emergency Make-up Day 
17 Presidents’ Day Recess – All Schools Closed 
 
March 
13 End of 3rd grading period/midterm – all schools 
23 No School – Emergency Make-up Day 
 
April 
6-10 Spring Recess – All Schools Closed 
16 Kindergarten Kick-off – Elementary Schools (Kindergarten Registration  
 runs April 13 – May 9) 
24 No School – Emergency Make-up Day 
 
May 
22 No School – Emergency Make-up Day 
25 Memorial Day – All Schools Closed 
 
June 
3 Last Day of School – full day for all students** 
3 Last Day for Teachers** 
4 Emergency Make-up Day (if necessary) 
7 Graduation 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
  

Key: 
underlined = Professional Day for                      No School (may be used as 
teachers (non-student day)                      emergency make-up day, if  
                        necessary)   
            School Out of Session (during  
            the Instructional school year)                      Kindergarten Kick-off  
             
            Parent/Teacher Conferences                     
            (no school for all students)                        
 

**If necessary, additional emergency make-up days  
will be added at the end of the school year 

 



What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting 

agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used 

and who will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant submission 

deadline?

Helping Hands 

Service Club

Clark 

Properties

West Side Middle 

School

Cami Berkey $900 Grant funds will be use to fund the 

community service activities the 

members of the Helping Hands 

Service club will performing.

The grant funds will help foster the vision of 

student community service.

$200 for homeless essential bags

Toothbrush

Toothpaste

Soap

Towl

Gift Certificates for food

$200 Warmth around town (hanging hats, 

gloves and socks around town for people 

who need them)

Hat

Gloves

Socks

$150 Grandma’s feet

Helping Hands created Non-slip socks for 

elderly

$50 Dog treats

Making Dog treats

$300 Spring Soup

Dried Soup Mix for food pantry

Total $900

11/30/2018

Page 1 of 1



















 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Mr. Mark Mow 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  November 13, 2018 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of an agreement regarding unpaid time. 

 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2018-19 school year: 

 

Kaitlyn Banks   Pinewood/Kindergarten 

 

David Freel   Memorial/Math 

 

Tamika Jones   Roosevelt/Grade 5 

 

Corinne Lankowicz  West Side/Language Arts 

 

Patricia Lawson  Pinewood/Grade 2 

 

Cara McMenamin  Memorial/Science 

 

Sarah Parcell   Memorial/FACS 

 

Jason Rybinski   Pinewood/Grade 6 

 

Lindsey Turner  Pinewood/Grade 1 

 

 
 
CLASSIFIED 

 

 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

 

Heather Basse   Bristol/Social Worker 

Began: 9/17/18   PE: 11/11/18 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Robert Burton Jr.  ECS/District Substitute 

Began: 9/5/18   PE: 10/30/18 

 

Dayna Corkins   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/11/18   PE: 11/5/18 

 

Lisa Curtis   Central/Custodian 

Began: 9/4/18   PE: 10/29/18 

 

Destiny Delle   Daly/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/14/18   PE: 11/8/18 

 

Sherry Fehnel   Cleveland/Food Service 

Began: 9/11/18   PE: 11/5/18 

 

Candus Griffin   Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began: 9/12/18   PE: 11/6/18 

 

Angela James   Transportation/ Bus Driver 

Began: 8/30/18   PE: 10/24/18 

 

Michelle Masten  Pierre Moran/Registered Nurse 

Began: 9/4/18   PE: 10/29/18 

 

Toni Meyer   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/11/18   PE: 11/13/18 

 

Whitney Miller  Beardsley/Food Service 

Began: 9/14/18   PE: 11/12/18 

 

Liana Oswalt   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 9/14/18   PE: 11/11/18 

 

Cassidy Parsons  Memorial/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/30/18   PE: 11/13/18 

 

Steven Robinson Jr.  Hawthorne/Permanent Substitute 

Began: 9/10/18   PE: 11/4/18 

 

Molly Shields   EACC/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/11/18   PE: 11/5/18 

 

Matenia Walters  Beardsley/Permanent Substitute 

Began: 9/10/18   PE: 11/4/18 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

 

Margaret Beaver  PACE/Speech Therapist 

Began:  8/20/18   Resign:  12/21/18 

 

Tracy Laribee   Cleveland/Food Service 

Began: 8/20/18   Resign: 10/22/18 

 

Connie Maglish  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 4/16/15   Resign: 10/22/18 

 

Kristen Smit   Transportation/Secretary 

Began: 10/7/13   Resign:  11/2/18           

  
 

c. Unpaid Leave Request  – We recommend an unpaid leave of the following employees: 

 

Carrie Landesman  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Begin: 10/1/18   End: 2/1/19 

 

Alta Radelich   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Begin: 12/4/18   End: 12/19/18 

 

Meghan Sutton  Eastwood/Secretary 

Begin: 11/1/18   End: 12/21/18 

 

Shamaghia Washington Hawthorne/Food Service 

Begin: 10/17/18   End: 11/30/18 

 

 

d. Termination – We report the termination of the following classified employee: 

Lisa Scott   Central/Food Service 

  Began: 11/07/17  End:   9/24/18 

      Board Policy:  3139.01s a,c,f,g 

 

 

 


	Agenda - revised
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - ECS Athletic Facilities
	Gift Acceptance - Monger
	Minutes - Public Work Session October 23 2018
	Minutes - Regular Meeting October 23 2018
	Minutes - Special Meeting November 8 2018
	Recommendation for Award EACC
	EACC Annex Bldg DB Project RFP-Recommendation of Best Value
	Recommendation for Award HS
	Letter of Recommendation to Award  HS
	Elkhart HS Bid Tabulation
	Extra Curricular Purchase Request
	Fundraisers
	Board Policy 5460
	Administrative Regulation JC
	Memo - Supplemental Payments
	Tentative ETA Agreement
	ECS Calendar 2019-2020
	Grant Submission
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Conference Leave Requests
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Personnel Report

